
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

SUMMONS TO ATTEND COUNCIL 
MEETING 
 

Monday 9 July 2012 at 7.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Brent Town Hall, Forty Lane, 
Wembley, HA9 9HD 
 
 
 
To the Mayor and Councillors of the London Borough of Brent and to 
each and every one of them. 
 
I hereby summon you to attend the MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this 
Borough.  
 

 
GARETH DANIEL 
Chief Executive 
 
Dated: Friday 29 June 2012 
 
 
For further information contact: Peter Goss, Democratic Services Manager 
020 8937 1353, peter.goss@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

www.brent.gov.uk/committees 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 

Public Document Pack



 

2 
 

Agenda 
 
Apologies for absence 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Minutes of previous meetings  
 

1 - 24 

2 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda. 
 

 

3 Mayor's announcements (including any petitions received)  
 

 

4 Appointments to committees and outside bodies and appointment of 
chairs/vice chairs (if any)  

 

 

5 Report from the Leader or members of the Executive  
 

25 - 26 

 To receive reports from the Leader or members of the Executive in 
accordance with Standing Order 42. 
 

 

6 Questions from the Opposition and other Non- Executive Members  
 

 

 Questions will be put to the Executive 
 

 

7 Reports from the Chairs of Overview and Scrutiny Committees  
 

 

 To receive reports from the Chairs of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees in accordance with Standing Order 41. 
 

 

8 Motions  
 

 

 To debate any motions submitted in accordance with Standing Order 45. 
 

 

9 By election results  
 

27 - 28 

 To note the results of the by elections held on 22 March and 3 May 2012. 
 

 

10 New standards regime under Localism Act  
 

29 - 86 

 Report attached on the implications of the Localism Act 2011 in relation to 
the Member’s Code of Conduct, the Standards arrangements and the 

 



 

3 
 

regulations published on 8th June 2012 setting out pecuniary interests. 
 

 Ward Affected: All Wards Contact Officer: Fiona Ledden, 
Director of Legal and Procurement 

 

   Tel: 020 8937 1292  

   fiona.ledden@brent.gov.uk  

11 Urgent business  
 

 

 At the discretion of the Mayor to consider any urgent business. 
 

 

 
 

� Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
• Toilets are available on the second floor. 
• Catering facilities can be found on the first floor near The Paul Daisley 

Hall. 
• A public telephone is located in the foyer on the ground floor, opposite the 

Porters’ Lodge 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT 

 
Minutes of a SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL  
held on Wednesday 16 May 2012 at 6.30 pm 

 
PRESENT: 

 
The Worshipful the Mayor 
Councillor M Aslam Choudry 

 
The Deputy Mayor 

Councillor Michael Adeyeye 
 

COUNCILLORS: 
Aden Al-Ebadi 
Arnold Ashraf 
Mrs Bacchus Beck 
Beswick Brown 
Butt Cheese 
Chohan S Choudhary 
Clues Colwill 
Crane Cummins 
Daly Denselow 
Gladbaum Green 
Harrison Hashmi 
Hirani Hopkins 
Hossain Hunter 
John Jones 
Kabir Kansagra 
Kataria Long 
Lorber Mashari 
Matthews J Moher 
R Moher Moloney 
Naheerathan Ogunro 
Oladapo BM Patel 
CJ Patel HB Patel 
HM Patel RS Patel 
Pavey Powney 
Ms Shaw Ketan Sheth 
Krupa Sheth Singh 
Sneddon Thomas 
Van Kalwala  

 
Apologies for absence 
Apologies were received from: Councillors Allie, Baker, Hector, Leaman, 
McLennan and Mitchell Murray 
 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



2 
Council - 16 May 2012 

1. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 
None declared. 
 

2. Proposed Conferment of Honorary Freedom of the London Borough of Brent  
 

 The conferment of Honorary Freedom of the Borough is to recognise persons of 
distinction who have rendered eminent services and are connected to the London 
Borough of Brent.   
 
The Chief Executive read out the resolution before the meeting. 
 
Councillor John paid tribute to the work of Nicolas Kent and made reference to 
many of his achievements during the 28 years he had been artistic director of the 
Tricycle theatre. 
 
Councillors Lorber and Kansagra added their appreciation of the work he had done 
within the borough to bring the Tricycle theatre to national and international 
prominence. 
 
The Mayor submitted the resolution to the meeting which was passed unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that, in accordance with the provisions of Section 249 of the Local Government Act 
1972, the Council of the London Borough of Brent: 
 
(i) invoke the provisions of Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 

confer the honour of Freedom of the Borough of Brent on Nicolas Kent in 
recognition of the 28 years outstanding service he has given as artistic 
director of The Tricycle theatre in Kilburn High Road during which time the 
theatre has received national and international recognition for the quality of 
its work, its commitment to celebrating diversity and its outreach work with 
local people, particularly those from disadvantaged backgrounds and that 
this honour of Freedom of the Borough be now so conferred on Mr Nicolas 
Kent in the year of his retirement from the theatre; 

 
(ii) that the granting of the Freedom be presented in an illuminated Scroll  
 and presented to the recipient in an appropriate casket. 
 
Having received the award, Nicolas Kent thanked the Council for the support it had 
given to the theatre over the years and pointed out that it was the 25th anniversary 
of the fire that damaged the theatre.  He referred to the rebuilding that took place 
that could not have happened without the support of the local community.  He 
stated that he regarded the award as a great honour.    
 

The meeting closed at 7.00 pm 
 
COUNCILLOR M ASLAM CHOUDRY 
Mayor 
 

Page 2



 

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT 

 
Minutes of the ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL  

held on Wednesday 16 May 2012 at 7.00 pm 
 

PRESENT: 
 

The Worshipful the Mayor 
Councillor M Aslam Choudrye 

 
The Deputy Mayor 

Councillor Michael Adeyeye 
 

COUNCILLORS: 
Aden Al-Ebadi 
Arnold Ashraf 
Mrs Bacchus Beck 
Beswick Brown 
Butt Cheese 
Chohan S Choudhary 
Clues Colwill 
Crane Cummins 
Daly Denselow 
Gladbaum Green 
Harrison Hashmi 
Hirani Hopkins 
Hossain Hunter 
John Jones 
Kabir Kansagra 
Kataria Long 
Lorber Mashari 
Matthews J Moher 
R Moher Moloney 
Naheerathan Ogunro 
Oladapo BM Patel 
CJ Patel HB Patel 
HM Patel RS Patel 
Pavey Powney 
Ms Shaw Ketan Sheth 
Krupa Sheth Singh 
Sneddon Thomas 
Van Kalwala  

 
 
Apologies for absence 

Page 3



2 
Council - 16 May 2012 

Apologies were received from: Councillors Allie, Baker, Hector, Leaman, 
McLennan and Mitchell Murray 
 
 
Brent Community Champion Awards 
 
Prior to the formal business of the meeting the outgoing Mayor presented Brent 
Community Champion Awards to the following people in recognition of their 
outstanding voluntary service within the borough: 
 
Azhar Jawad 
Dzevad Dizdarevic 
Eileen Moore* 
Friba Rawish 
Jayant P Patel 
Marie Hancock 
Mohammed Sadeeq 
Musa Muhammad 
Nivethitha Vadivel 
Rhian Skye Downes-Cyrus 
Robert Wilson 
Shawna-Lee Lewin 
Sidra Jamil 
Surjit Singh Dhemrait 
Thivya Jeyashanker 
Tyrell Cristopher 
Vallabhbhai Patel 
Amina Hagi 
* this person was unable to attend the meeting to collect their award. 
 
 
 

1. To elect the Mayor of the Borough for the municipal year 2012/2013  
 
The Worshipful the Mayor, Councillor Choudry called for nominations for the office 
of the Mayor of the Borough for the municipal year 2012/2013. 
 
Councillor Butt nominated Councillor Adeyeye and this was seconded by Councillor 
Kansagra. 
 
Councillor Lorber nominated Councillor Cheese and this was seconded by 
Councillor Hunter.  
 
A vote was thereupon taken, 42 Members voted for Councillor Adeyeye and 15 
Members voted for Councillor Cheese. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that Councillor Adeyeye be and he is hereby elected, Mayor of the London Borough 
of Brent, for the municipal year 2012/2013. 
 
Councillor Adeyeye was robed and invested with the Mayor’s chain. 

Page 4



3 
Council - 16 May 2012 

 
Councillor Adeyeye signed the statutory Declaration of Acceptance of Office of 
Mayor. 
 
The past Mayor, Councillor Choudry vacated the Chair which was taken by the 
newly elected Mayor.  
 
The Mayor then thanked Members of the Council for his election and informed the 
Council that his charities for the year would be Brent Association of Disabled 
People, Rays of Sunshine (a children’s charity) and The Sickle Cell Society. 
 

2. Appointment of a Councillor of the Borough to be Deputy Mayor  
 
The Mayor announced the appointment of Councillor Thomas as Deputy Mayor of 
the London Borough of Brent for the municipal year 2012/2013. 
 

3. Vote of thanks  
 
Councillor Arnold moved a vote of thanks, which was unanimously supported. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that the Council place on record their thanks and regard for the outstanding public 
service rendered by the co-opted members, independent members, observers and 
others who have served on council committees, sub-committee, consultative 
committees, boards, governing bodies, resident associations etc during the past 
municipal year. 
 
Councillor Butt moved a vote of thanks to the retiring Mayor for his services to the 
community.  Councillors Lorber and Kansagra spoke on behalf of their groups and 
paid tribute to the work of Councillor M Aslam Choudry during his year as Mayor. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that the Council records its appreciation of the outstanding service rendered by 
Councillor Choudry as Mayor of the London Borough of Brent during the past 
municipal year and for the manner in which he has presided over Council meetings.  
The Council also appreciates his attendance at a vast number of events and 
functions and his service to all sections of Brent’s diverse community. 
 
Councillor Choudry, having been invested with the past Mayor’s Badge, thanked 
councillors for their tributes and reflected on his year of office.  
 

4. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 
None declared. 
 

5. Minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2012  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 

Page 5



4 
Council - 16 May 2012 

that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 February 2012 be approved as 
an accurate record of the meeting. 
 

6. Changes to the Constitution and approval of the pay policy statement  
 
The report before members proposed minor changes to the Council’s Constitution 
by amending Standing Orders in relation to petitions and motions, adopting the 
Members’ Allowance Scheme and also formally approving the pay policy statement. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(i) that the Constitution be amended to incorporate the changes to the Standing 

Orders relating to petitions, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report; 
 
(ii) that the Constitution be amended to incorporate the changes to Standing 

Orders in relation to motions, as set out in Appendix 2 of the report; 
 
(iii) that the Members Allowance Scheme be agreed, as set out in Appendix 3 to 

the report; 
 
(iv) that the pay policy statement attached at Appendix 4 to the report be 

approved as an accurate and factual representation of the Council’s pay 
arrangements for 2012/13. 

 
7. Political balance  

 
The report before Members dealt with the rules to be applied on the allocation of 
places on committees established by the Council. 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
(i) that the size of the committees to be established by the Council and the 

allocation of seats to each of the political groups be as follows: 
 
Committee Size Labour Liberal  

Democrats  
Conservative 

General 
Purposes  

10 6 3 1 

Planning 11 7 3 1 
Audit 3* 2 1 0 
Totals 24 15 7 2 
Other 
committees 

Size Labour Liberal 
Democrats 

Conservative 

One Council 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 

8 5 2 1 

Children and 
Young People 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 

8** 5 2 1 

Page 6



5 
Council - 16 May 2012 

Budget and 
Finance 
Overview and 
Scrutiny  

8 5 2 1 

Partnership 
and Place 
Overview and 
Scrutiny  

8 5 2 1 

Health 
Partnerships 
Overview and 
Scrutiny  

8 5 2 1 

Call-in 
Overview and 
Scrutiny  

8 5 2 1 

Alcohol and 
Entertainment 
Licensing  

15 10 4 1 

Standards  3#  1 1 1 
*plus 1 non voting co-opted member 
**plus 4 statutory co-opted members and 2 non statutory co-opted members 
#plus 4 independent members 
 

(ii) to note that the political balance on sub-committees will be reviewed at the 
first meetings of the Alcohol and Entertainment Licensing Committee and 
General Purposes Committee. 

 
8. Notification of appointments to the Executive and appointments to 

committees and other bodies  
 
Councillor S Choudhary moved the appointment of Councillor Butt as Leader of the 
Council following the written resignation submitted by Councillor John.  Notification 
of the appointment of members to the Executive (and Highways Committee) and 
nominations for the places on committees and other bodies, including chairs and 
vice chairs and outside bodies were tabled.  
 
Councillor Lorber moved that the Council’s appointments to Brent Housing 
Partnership should comprise two Labour councillors, 1 Liberal Democrat councillor 
and one Conservative councillor.  This was put to the vote and declared LOST. 
 
Councillors Colwill, Hashmi, Jones, Ogunro and Thomas had been nominated to fill 
the four places on the Brent Housing Partnership Board.  Following voting on each 
nomination it was agreed that Councillors Colwill, Jones, Ogunro and Thomas be 
appointed. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(i) that Councillor Butt be appointed Leader of the Council until the Annual 

meeting of the Council in May 2014; 
 
(ii) that the appointment of the Executive, as notified by the Leader of the 

Council, be noted: 

Page 7



6 
Council - 16 May 2012 

 
Councillor  Portfolio 
Butt (Leader and Chair) Corporate Strategy and Policy Co-

ordination 
R Moher (Deputy Leader 
and Vice Chair) 

Corporate Resources 

Arnold Children and Families 
Beswick Crime and Public Safety 
Crane Regeneration and Major Projects 
Jones Customers and Citizens 
Long Housing 
J Moher Highways and Transportation 
Hirani Adults and Health 
Powney Environment and Neighbourhoods 
Highways Committee 
Councillor Alternate 
Beswick John 
Jones R Moher 
Long Arnold 
J Moher (Chair) Butt 
Powney (Vice Chair) Crane 

 
(iii) that the appointment of Chairs, Vice-Chairs and the memberships of 

committees be as set out in Appendix A to these minutes; 
 

(iv) that Angela Ruotolo be appointed Chair and Sola Afuape appointed Vice-
Chair of the Standards Committee; 

 
(v) that Stephen Woods be appointed Chair of the Audit Committee; 

 
(vi) that the following statutory co-optees be appointed to the Children and 

Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 
2012/13: 
 

Mrs S Abbasi Parent Governor, Primary 
Dr Kumar Parent Governor, Secondary 
Mr A Frederick Catholic faith 
Ms E Point Church of England faith 

(v) that Dr J Levison, representing the Jewish faith, and Mrs Hawra Imame, 
representing the Muslim faith, be appointed as non-statutory members of the 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the 
municipal year 2012/13; 

(vi) that appointments/nominations to outside bodies be made as set out in 
Appendix B to these minutes. 

 
9. Municipal calendar of meetings for 2012/13  

 
RESOLVED: 
 

Page 8



7 
Council - 16 May 2012 

(i) that the dates for Full Council and other meetings to take place during 
2012/2013 as set out in Appendix 1 to the report submitted be agreed in 
principle; 

 
(ii) that the Democratic Services Manager be authorised to make any alterations 

deemed necessary to the calendar during the course of the municipal year, 
subject to the usual consultation. 

 
10. Urgent business  

 
None. 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 8.10 pm 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR M ASLAM CHOUDRYADEYEYE 
Mayor 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



as at 16 May 2012 1

 
 

 
 
 

COMMITTEE STRUCTURE 
 

MAY 2012 – MAY 2013 
 

 
• Members are shown in capital letters 

 
• First and second alternates are shown opposite in that order 

 
• Chairs are denoted (C) and Vice-Chairs (VC) 

 
• The political balance is shown by the name of each committee/sub-

committee as follows (5/4/2). 
 
 

Peter Goss 
Democratic Services Manager 

 
For further information please contact  
Anne Reid, Democratic Services on  

020 8937 1359 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



as at 16 May 2012 2

 
 
 

THE EXECUTIVE  
AND COMMITTEES OF THE EXECUTIVE 

 
 

EXECUTIVE 
 
ARNOLD  -  Lead Member for Children and Families 
BESWICK - Lead Member for Crime and Public Safety 
BUTT(C) - Lead Member for Corporate Strategy and Policy Co-ordination 
CRANE - Lead Member for Regeneration and Major Projects 
HIRANI - Lead Member for Adult, Health and Social Care 
JONES - Lead Member for Customers and Citizens 
LONG  - Lead Member for Housing 
J MOHER - Lead Member for Highways and Transportation 
R MOHER (VC) - Lead Member for Finance and Corporate Resources 
POWNEY - Lead Member for Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 
 
 
 
 
HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE (5/0/0) 
 
BESWICK    Hirani  
JONES    R Moher 
LONG     Arnold 
J MOHER (C)    Butt 
POWNEY (VC)   Crane 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



as at 16 May 2012 3

 
 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
 

ALCOHOL AND ENTERTAINMENT LICENSING COMMITTEE  
(10/4/1) 
 
BACCHUS (C)   Aden   Adeyeye 
CHOHAN    Denselow  Gladbaum 
HARRISON    John   Long 
HECTOR    Mashari  McLennan 
JONES    Al-Ebadi  Arnold 
KATARIA    S Choudhary  Singh 
OGUNRO    Mitchell Murray J Moher 
OLADAPO    Beswick  Butt 
PAVEY    Crane   Daly 
THOMAS    Hirani   Hossain 
 
CHEESE    Vacant   Vacant 
MATTHEWS    Vacant   Vacant 
SHAW     Vacant   Vacant 
SNEDDON     Vacant   Vacant  
 
HM PATEL    BM Patel  HB Patel 
 

ALCOHOL AND ENTERTAINMENT LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (A) 
 
KATARIA (C)   Harrison  Oladapo 
 
HECTOR   Bacchus  Jones 

 
CHEESE   Matthews  Shaw 
 

 
ALCOHOL AND ENTERTAINMENT LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (B) 
 
CHOHAN (C)   Oladapo  Daly 
 
JONES   Ogunro  Bacchus 

 
HM PATEL   Shaw    Matthews 
 
ALCOHOL AND ENTERTAINMENT LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (C) 
 
HARRISON (C)  Oladapo  Thomas 
 
PAVEY   Bacchus  Jones 
 
SNEDDON    HM Patel  Matthews  

 

Page 13



as at 16 May 2012 4

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
(2/1/0) 
 
Al-EBADI    S Choudhary  Pavey 
 
VAN KALWALA   Harrison  Hector 
 
CUMMINS    Ashraf   Green 
 
NON-VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBER  
 
STEPHEN WOODS (C)  
 
 
GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE  
(6/3/1) 
 
BESWICK    Arnold   Bacchus 
BUTT (C)    A Choudry  Krupa Sheth 
HIRANI    Van Kalwala  Aden 
LONG     Al-Ebadi  Naheerathan 
J MOHER    Chohan  S Choudhary 
R MOHER (VC)   Jones   Kabir 
 
BROWN    Beck   Matthews 
CHEESE    Sneddon  Allie 
LORBER    Hopkins  Hunter 
 
KANSAGRA    Colwill   BM Patel 
 

BRENT PENSION FUND SUB-COMMITTEE  
(4/2/1) 

 
BACCHUS   Oladapo  Daly 
S CHOUDHARY (C)  Denselow  Gladbaum 
CRANE   Harrison  Hector 
MITCHELL MURRAY  Hirani   Hossain 
 
BROWN    Lorber   Vacant 
HASHMI    CJ Patel   Vacant 

 
BM PATEL    HB Patel  Baker 
 
 
NON-VOTING CO-OPTEES:   Ashok Patel 
    George Fraser  
 
GENERAL PURPOSES LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  
(1/1/1) 
 
LONG (C)   Beswick  John 
 
SNEDDON    Clues   Shaw 
 
BM PATEL   HM Patel  Colwill 

Page 14



as at 16 May 2012 5

 
SCHOOLS DISCIPLINARY SUB-COMMITTEE  
(3/1/1) 
 
ARNOLD   Jones   Kabir 
DALY (VC)   Long   Mashari 
HARRISON (C)  Crane   John 
 
CHEESE   Leaman  CJ Patel 

 
HM PATEL   BM Patel  Colwill 
 
 
SENIOR STAFF APPOINTMENTS SUB-COMMITTEE  
(3/1/1) 
 
BUTT (C)   J Moher  Powney 
JONES   Arnold   J Moher 
R MOHER (VC)  Beswick  Hirani 
 
LORBER   Brown   Leaman 

 
KANSAGRA   Colwill   HB Patel 

 
STAFF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE (A)  
(3/1/1) 
 
JOHN (VC)   Thomas  Naheerathan 
MOLONEY   J Moher  Butt 
KETAN SHETH (C)  McLennan  Mitchell Murray 
 
CHEESE   Beck   CJ Patel 
 
BM PATEL   Colwill   Baker 

 
STAFF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE (B)  
(3/1/1) 
 
HECTOR   Ketan Sheth  Thomas 
LONG (VC)   RS Patel  Powney 
McLENNAN (C)  Ogunro  Oladapo 
 
HASHMI    Beck              CJ Patel 
 
HM PATEL        BM Patel  Colwill 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



as at 16 May 2012 6

 
EMPLOYEES’ JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  
(5/2/1) 
  
LONG    Beswick  Butt 
MITCHELL MURRAY  Bacchus  Pavey 
J MOHER   Van Kalwala  Kataria 
R MOHER   Al-Ebadi  Arnold 
MOLONEY   Aden   Adeyeye 
 
HUNTER    Vacant   Vacant 
SNEDDON   Vacant   Vacant 

 
COLWILL   HB Patel  BM Patel 
 
 
TEACHERS’ JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  
(5/2/1) 
 
AL-EBADI   Hector   Hirani 
ARNOLD (C)   S Choudhary  Oladapo 
CHOHAN   John   Jones 
HARRISON   Crane   Daly 
HOSSAIN   Denselow  Gladbaum  
 
MATTHEWS    Vacant   Vacant 
SNEDDON    Vacant   Vacant 
 
HM PATEL   Baker   Colwill 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  
(7/3/1) 
 
ADEN     J Moher  Moloney 
DALY (VC)    Long   Naheerathan 
JOHN     Van Kalwala  Ogunro 
RS PATEL      Gladbaum  Harrison 
KETAN SHETH (C)   Thomas  R Moher 
KRUPA SHETH   Oladapo  Powney 
SINGH     Hossain  Mashari 
 
CUMMINS    Shaw   Allie 
HASHMI    Cheese  Beck 
CJ PATEL    Hopkins   Lorber    
 
BAKER    Kansagra   HB Patel  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



as at 16 May 2012 7

ONE COUNCIL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
 (5/2/1) 
 
CHOHAN    Hossain  Kataria 
McLENNAN    Harrison  Hector 
MITCHELL MURRAY   Denselow  Gladbaum 
PAVEY    Van Kalwala  Mashari 
KETAN SHETH   Kabir   Kataria 
 
ASHRAF (C)    Brown   Beck  
LORBER    Brown   Hopkins 
 
COLWILL (VC)    BM Patel   Kansagra 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
(5/2/1) 

 
A CHOUDRY (VC)   Harrison  Hector 
S CHOUDHARY   Chohan  Moloney 
NAHEERATHAN   McLennan  Oladapo 
KETAN SHETH   Denselow  Gladbaum 
VAN KALWALA   Kataria   Daly 

 
ALLIE (C)    Green    Cummins 
BROWN    Ashraf   Lorber  
 
HB PATEL  BM Patel  HM Patel   

 
 

CALL-IN OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
(5/2/1) 
 
DENSELOW (VC)   Bacchus  Hossain 
GLADBAUM    Adeyeye  Al-Ebadi 
KABIR     Mitchell Murray Chohan 
RS PATEL    McLennan  Aden 
KRUPA SHETH   Harrison  Ketan Sheth 

 
ASHRAF (C)    Hopkins  Brown 
LORBER    Matthews  Allie 

 
HB PATEL    BM Patel   Colwill 

 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(5/2/1) 

 
ADEN     Oladapo  Harrison 
AL-EBADI    Denselow  RS Patel 
MASHARI (C)    S Choudhary  Hector  
MITCHELL MURRAY   Daly   Ogunro 
PAVEY    Krupa Sheth  Hossain 

 
CHEESE (VC)    CJ Patel  Sneddon 
MATTHEWS    Leaman  Lorber 
 

Page 17



as at 16 May 2012 8

KANSAGRA    Baker   Kansagra 
STATUTORY CO-OPTEES:  Mrs S Abbasi (Primary School Parent Governor) 

Dr Kumar (Secondary School Parent Governor) 
Alloysius Frederick (Catholic Faith) 
Elsie Point (Church of England Faith) 

  
NON-STATUTORY    Dr Levison (Jewish Faith) 
CO-OPTEES:    Mrs Hawra Imame (Muslim Faith) 

 
OBSERVERS:   Mr A Carter 

 Ms J Cooper 
 Mrs L Gouldbourne 
 Ms C Jolinon 
 Mr B Patel 
 Brent Youth Parliament representatives 

 
 
HEALTH PARTNERSHIPS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(5/2/1) 

 
DALY    Ketan Sheth   Van Kalwala 
HARRISON   Naheerathan   Singh 
HECTOR   Aden    Al-Ebadi 
HOSSAIN   Ogunro   RS Patel 
KABIR  (C)   Mitchell Murray  Moloney 

 
HUNTER (VC)   Cheese    Shaw 
LEAMAN   Sneddon   Clues 
 
COLWILL   Baker    Kansagra 
 
 
PARTNERSHIP AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(5/2/1) 

 
HARRISON   Oladapo   Ketan Sheth 
NAHEERATHAN  Al-Ebadi   Pavey 
RS PATEL   Chohan   S Choudhary 
KRUPA SHETH  Aden    Denselow 
VAN KALWALA (C)  Ogunro   Daly 

 
CLUES (VC)   Matthews   Allie 
HOPKINS   Lorber     Leaman 
 
HB PATEL   Colwill    Kansagra 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
(1/1/1) plus independent members 
       
GLADBAUM   Hossain   Harrison 
 
BECK    Lorber    Brown 
 
COLWILL   HB Patel   HM Patel 
 
 

Page 18



as at 16 May 2012 9

 
INDEPENDENT MEMBERS:  
 
Angela Ruotolo (C) Sheila Darr   John Mann  
 
Sola Afuape (VC) John Mann        Sheila Darr  
 

STANDARDS (INITIAL ASSESSMENT) SUB-COMMITTEE  
(1/1/1) plus independent member 
       

 GLADBAUM   Hossain   Harrison 
 

BECK    Leaman   Lorber 
 

COLWILL   HB Patel   Kansagra 
 
INDEPENDENT MEMBERS:   
 
Angela Ruotolo (C)    Sheila Darr   John Mann 

 
STANDARDS (REVIEW) SUB-COMMITTEE  
(1/1/1) plus independent member 
     

 HOSSAIN   Harrison   Gladbaum 
 

LEAMAN   Beck    Lorber 
 

HB PATEL   Colwill     HM Patel 
 
INDEPENDENT MEMBERS:      

 
Sola Afuape (C)   John Mann   Sheila Darr 

 
 
LONDON COUNCILS LEADERS’ COMMITTEE (s101 JOINT COMMITTEE) 
 
BUTT     R Moher (Deputy) 

    
LONDON COUNCILS GRANTS COMMITTEE (ASSOCIATED JOINT COMMITTEE) 
 
BUTT      Al-Ebadi (Deputy) 

Hirani  (Deputy) 
R Moher (Deputy) 

 
LONDON COUNCILS TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  
(ASSOCIATED JOINT COMMITTEE) 
 
J MOHER    Crane (Deputy) 
     Powney (Deputy) 
     Long (Deputy) 
     vacancy (Deputy) 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



as at 16 May 2012 10

JOINT (LONDON-WIDE) OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

AL-EBADI      Mashari 
 
Since the structure was considered notification has been received that there is no need for this 
body to be re-constituted. 
 
 
 
NORTH WEST LONDON JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
HARRISON 
KABIR 

Page 20



as at 16 May 2012 11

OTHER BODIES AND PANELS 
 
ADOPTION AND PERMANENCY PANEL  
(1/0/0) 
 
HOSSAIN 
 
FOSTERING PANEL  
(1/0/0) 
 
GLADBAUM 
 
SCHOOL ADMISSIONS FORUM 
(3/1/1) 
 
GLADBAUM    R Moher  RS Patel 
HARRISON (C)   Kabir   Kataria 
JONES    McLennan  Oladapo 
 
tbc     CJ Patel  Hashmi 
 
KANSAGRA     HM Patel  HB Patel 
 
Since the structure was considered notification has been received that under the  school 
admissions code 2012, there is no need for this body to be re-constituted. 
 
 
TRADING STANDARDS JOINT ADVISORY BOARD  
(1/1/1) 
 
JONES    Powney  Beswick 
 
HASHMI    Brown   CJ Patel 
 
BAKER    BM Patel  HM Patel 
 
 
WELSH HARP JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  
(3/1/0) 
 
KATARIA    J Moher  Crane 
MASHARI    Kabir   John 
SINGH     R Moher  Hirani 
 
HOPKINS      Ashraf   Hashmi 

  

Page 21



as at 16 May 2012 12

 
SERVICE USER CONSULTATIVE FORUMS  
 

 
USER FORUM CHAIR 2 ADDITIONAL  

COUNCILLORS 
   

BLACK AND MINORITY 
ETHNIC 

A CHOUDRY 
 

Kataria  
Lorber 
 

BRENT DISABLED GLADBAUM 
 

Hector 
Cheese 
 

PENSIONERS’ MOLONEY 
 

Hossain 
CJ Patel 
 

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING McLENNAN S Choudhary 
HM Patel 
 

VOLUNTARY SECTOR 
LIAISON 

AL-EBADI Kabir 
Colwill 

   
 
 
AREA CONSULTATIVE FORUMS  
 

 
AREA FORUM CHAIR VICE-CHAIR 

   
HARLESDEN THOMAS GLADBAUM 
KILBURN AND KENSAL DENSELOW OLADAPO 
KINGSBURY AND KENTON NAHEERATHAN RS PATEL 
WEMBLEY MITCHELL 

MURRAY 
HOSSAIN 

WILLESDEN A CHOUDRY KATARIA 
   
 
 
YOUTH PARLIAMENT 
 
 
MASHARI - (Co-Chair) 
OLADAPO - (Co-Vice-Chair) 
 

Page 22



 

OUTSIDE BODIES APPOINTMENTS 2012/13 
 
Outside Bodies Member/s appointed for municipal year 

2012/13 
Member/s appointed for 2011/12 

      
Age UK London  Choudhary [L], HB Patel [C] Choudhary [L], HB Patel [C] 

Agreed Syllabus Conference (added 2011) 
Arnold [L], Chohan [L], Choudhary [L], 
Gladbaum [L], Moloney [L] 

Moloney [L], Chohan [L], Choudhary [L], 
Gladbaum [L], Arnold [L] 

Brent Housing Partnership (BHP) Board 
Thomas [L], Ogunro [L], Jones [L], Colwill 
[C]  

Thomas [L], Ogunro [L], Jones [L], Colwill 
[C] 

Brent Local Board  Gladbaum [L], Hirani [L] Gladbaum [L], Hirani [L] 
Brent Sports Council Oladapo [L], Moloney [L], HM Patel [C] Oladapo [L], Moloney [L], Colwill [C] 

Central and North West London NHS 
Foundation Trust Ketan Sheth [L] Ketan Sheth [L] 
Chalkhill Community Centre Choudhary [L] Beckman [L] 

Chalkhill Community Trust Fund Aden [L], Pavey [L] Aden [L], Choudhary [L] 
Edward Harvist Trust  No appointment required until 2015-16 Choudhary [L] (appointed until 2015-16) 

Energy Solutions (North West London) McLennan [L] McLennan [L] 
Environmental Protection UK Powney [L], Long [L],  HM Patel [C] Powney [L], Long [L],  HM Patel [C] 

Greater London Enterprise Board Crane [L] Crane [L] 
Hillside Housing Trust Van Kalwala [L] Moloney [L] 

Historic Environment Champion (English 
Heritage) Baker [C] Baker [C] 

LHC - Building Components and Solutions Long [L], Ogunro [L] Long [L], Ogunro [L] 

Local Government Association General 
Assembly Butt [L], R Moher [L] (dep) John [L], Butt [L] (dep) 

Local Government Information Unit 
Members’ Assembly Jones [L], Gladbaum [L] (dep) Jones [L], Gladbaum [L] (dep) 

P
age 23



 

Outside Bodies Member/s nominated for municipal year 
2012/13 

Member/s appointed for 2011/12 

London Councils Greater London 
Employment Forum R Moher [L], Harrison [L] Butt [L], Harrison [L] 
London Councils Ltd Butt [L], R Moher [L] (dep) John [L], Butt [L] (dep), R Moher [L] (dep) 
London Road Safety Council  J Moher [L], HB Patel [C] Adeyeye [L], HB Patel [C] 

London Youth Games Committee Van Kalwala [L] Hirani [L] 
Museums Association BM Patel [C] BM Patel [C]  
Park Royal Partnership Ltd Van Kalwala [L] Van Kalwala [L] 

Partners for Brent (Local Strategic 
Partnership) Butt [L]  John [L] 

Queen's Park Joint Consultative Group Arnold [L], Denselow [L] Adeyeye [L], Denselow [L] 

Reserve Forces and Cadets Association for 
Greater London Krupa Sheth [L] Krupa Sheth [L] 

South Kilburn Neighbourhood Partnership 
Board Arnold [L]  Arnold [L] 

Standing Advisory Council for Religious 
Education (SACRE) Chohan [L], Choudhar [L], Daly [L] Moloney [L], Chohan [L], Choudhary [L] 

Tricycle Theatre 
John [L], (alt Arnold [L] as agreed with 
Tricycle), Colwill [C] 

John [L], (alt Arnold [L], agreed with 
Tricycle), Colwill [C]  

Wembley Educational Foundation Mitchell Murray [L], HB Patel [C] Mitchell Murray [L], HB Patel [C] 

Wembley Eleemosynary Charities Hossain [L], Mitchell Murray [L] Hossain [L], Mitchell Murray [L] 
West London Alliance Butt [L] John [L] 
West London Partnership Butt [L] John [L] 
West London Waste Authority Powney [L]  Powney [L] 

Willesden Consolidated Charities 
Choudry [L], Hector [L], Jones [L], Hashmi 
[LD] 

Jones [L], Hector [L], Choudry [L], Hashmi 
[LD] 

Willow Housing Board Hirani [L], Thomas [L] Thomas [L], R Moher [L] 
 

P
age 24



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FULL COUNCIL – 9 JULY 2012 
 
 

Report from the Executive 
 
 
1. Items to be reported by the Executive 
 

The Leader has given notice that the Executive will report to Council on the 
following items: 
 
a. Funding for Alperton and Copeland Schools 
b. Carers Hub 
c. Expansion of schools – Newfield, Brentfield and Preston Manor 

Lower School 
d. Recycling Caddy Liners 
e. Council Tax Support Consultation 
 
 

2. Decisions taken by the Executive under the Council’s urgency 
provisions 
 
Under the provisions of rule 38 of the Access to Information Rules in the 
Constitution, the Executive is required to report to the next Full Council for 
information on any key decisions taken by them but which did not appear in 
the Forward Plan. 
 
Voluntary Sector Initiative Fund Themed Grant Round 2012-2015 
 
 The above item was considered by the Executive on 21 May 2012 when the 
decisions was taken to agree the voluntary sector led projects and grant 
funding allocations for this round of themed funding. 
 
Reason why it was impractical to defer the decision until it could be included 
on the Forward Plan: 

 
Decisions were required as soon as possible to give successful 
organisations the best opportunity to deliver outcomes for residents during 
2012/2013 and meet legal advice on ensuring this round of funding followed 
directly on from previous rounds of grant funding 
  

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT 
 

FULL COUNCIL – 9 JULY 2012 
 
 

 
 
DOLLIS HILL BY-ELECTION HELD ON 22 MARCH 2012 - RESULT  
 
 

Candidate/party 
 

Number of votes 

 
AHMED, 
Parvez 

(Labour) 

 
1168 

  

AHMEDALI, 
Samer  

(Conservative) 

140 

  

HOPKINS, 
Alison 

(Liberal Democrat) 

1205 
ELECTED 

 
MURRY, 
Peter 

(Green) 

79 
 

 
 
The elected member has signed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Barnhill by election result/".. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 27



 
 
 
 
 
BARNHILL BY-ELECTION HELD ON 3 MAY 2012 - RESULT  
 
 

Candidate/party 
 

Number of votes 

 
FRANCIS, 
Martin 
(Green) 

 
457 

  

PAVEY, 
Michael  
(Labour) 

2326 
ELECTED 

 
  

PINDORIA, 
Kanta 

(Conservative) 

1180 
 

VAGEHELA, 
Venilal 

(Independent) 

156 
 

 
 
The elected member has signed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office. 
 

Page 28



 

 

 
 

 
Full Council 
9 July 2012 

Report from Director of Legal and 
Procurement Department 

 

For action        Wards affected 
         All 

New Code of Conduct and Standards Regime under the 
Localism Act 2011  

 

1. Summary 
 
A report to inform members of the implications of the Localism Act 2011 in 
relation to the Member’s Code of Conduct, the Standards arrangements and 
the regulations published on 8th June 2012 setting out the pecuniary interests 
and to invite Members to adopt the new arrangements.  The Localism Act 
makes reference to the Monitoring Officer who at Brent Council is the Director 
of Legal and Procurement. 
 

2. Recommendations 
 
That Members  
 
2.1 Note the implications of the Localism Act 2011 and in particular that it 

places an obligation on the council to promote and maintain high 
ethical standards by its members and co-opted members. 
 

2.2 Agree to adopt the Code of Conduct for Members attached as 
Appendix 1 to this report.  
 

2.3 Note the sanctions available to the Full Council in relation to members 
found to be in breach of the new Code of Conduct set out in 
paragraphs 12 and 16.7 of this report. 
 

2.4 Agree to appoint a new Standards Committee with the terms of 
reference attached as Appendix 2. 
 

2.5 Agree to allocate the seats on the new Standards Committee as set out 
in paragraph 14.3 of this report. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 29



 

 

2.6 To appoint a non-voting co-opted member (and alternate) to the new 
Standards Committee. 
 

2.7 Agree to delegate to the Monitoring Officer the decision to refer a 
written complaint to Standards Committee and to take other action, 
including no action. 
 

2.8 Agree to appoint two ‘independent persons’ to fulfil the role set out in 
paragraph 13 of this report.  
 

2.9 Agree that delegated authority be given to the Monitoring Officer to 
take decisions in relation to dispensations, as set out in the Code of 
Conduct.  
 

2.10 Agree that delegated authority be given to the Monitoring Officer,  to 
draw up and agree detailed procedures to support the Code of Conduct 
and the new standards regime, including detailed powers and duties 
and procedures for the new Standards Committee following 
consultation with the Constitutional Working Group. 
 

2.11 Note that the new Standards Committee will review and refine the 
detailed procedures and operation of the new regime at a meeting 
during the 2012/13 municipal year.  
 

2.12 Note the advice note from the Monitoring Officer to all members in 
relation to the definition of Pecuniary Interests attached as Appendix 3. 
 

2.13 Agree that the Constitution be amended in accordance with the track 
changes shown at Appendix 4. 
 

3. Detail 
 
3.1 The Localism Act 2011 received Royal Assent on 15th November 2011 

which included changes to the arrangements for Members’ Code of 
Conduct and standards matters.  The Government issued guidance 
and regulations on 8th June 2012 setting out rules regarding pecuniary 
interests and maintenance of a register of interests. 
 

4. Duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct  
 
4.1 The Act places an obligation on the council to promote and maintain 

high standards of conduct by Members and co-optees.  A co-opted 
Member is defined as an unelected person who is also a member of a 
committee or sub-committee or Council representative on a joint 
committee or joint sub-committee and who is entitled to vote on any 
question which falls to be decided by any of these meetings. 
 

4.2 Members are advised that the Code of Conduct will also be applied to 
the non-voting co-opted members.  
 

4.3 Under the proposed new Standards Committee the independent 
member will be a non-voting co-opted member of the committee. 
 

Page 30



 

 

5. Duty to have a Code of Conduct 
 
5.1 In promoting and maintaining high standards, the council must adopt a 

Code of Conduct for members and co-optees when they are acting in 
that capacity (i.e. as a member or co optee).   
 

5.2 The Council’s Code must cover the following 7 principles specified in 
the Act: 
- Selflessness 
- Integrity 
- Objectivity 
- Accountability 
- Openness 
- Honesty 
- Leadership 

 
6. Registration of interests 

 
6.1 The council must ensure that its Code of Conduct includes provisions it 

considers appropriate for the registration in a register, and disclosure 
of:- 
- pecuniary interests, and 
- non pecuniary interests. 

 
6.2 The council’s Monitoring Officer must establish and maintain a register 

of interests.  That register must be available for public inspection and 
published on the council’s website. 
 

7. Disclosure of pecuniary interests 
  
7.1 A Member or co-optee must, before the end of 28 days from the date of 

election to office or appointment as a co-optee, notify the Monitoring 
Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interests. 
 

7.2 A pecuniary interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest in relation to a 
person (as specified in regulations) and either –  

 
(a)  It is the Member or co-optee’s interest, or  

 (b)  It is an interest of: 
(i)  a member’s or co-optee’s spouse or civil partner, 
(ii)  a person with whom a member or co-optee is living as 

husband and wife, or  
(iii) a person with whom a Member or co-optee is living as if they 

were civil partners,  
and the Member or co-optee is aware that the other person has the 
interest. 
 

7.3 The definition of pecuniary interest is set out in Appendix 3. 
 

8. Disclosure of pecuniary interest at meetings 
 

Page 31



 

 

8.1 If a Member or co-optee is present at a meeting and has a disclosable 
pecuniary interest in a matter under consideration, if the interest has 
not been registered they must disclose it at the meeting.   
 

8.2 The Member or co-optee may not participate in the discussions or vote 
on the matter where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

8.3 Under the Act the Council’s constitution may make provisions for the 
exclusion of a Member or co-optee from a meeting while discussion 
and voting takes place and the Code has been drafted to include this 
provision. 

 
9. Sensitive Interests 

 
9.1 Where a Member or co-optee has an interest, the disclosure of which 

the Monitoring Office believes could subject the Member or co-optee to 
violence or intimidation, the interest should not be placed on the public 
register.  Instead, the register would simply say that the Member or co-
optee has an interest, the details of which are withheld under s32 (2) of 
the Localism Act 2011.   
 

10. Dispensations 
 
10.1 The council (or its nominated body or person) may, on written request 

from a Member or co-optee, grant a dispensation to relieve the 
applicant from the restrictions on participation and voting.  
Dispensation may be granted if:- 
 
- Without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited from 

participating would be so great a proportion to impede the 
effectiveness of the meeting, 

- The representation of different political groups would be affected 
and likely to alter the likely outcome of any voting at the meeting, 

- Granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the 
Borough, 

- Every Member of the Council’s Executive would be precluded from 
participating in the meeting, 

- It is appropriate to grant a dispensation 
 
Dispensation may be granted for up to 4 years.  A dispensation will 
mean that the Member or co-optee to whom it is granted can speak 
and vote on a matter in which they have a relevant interest. 
 

11. Political exemptions;  
 

11.1 The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 allows for Councils to 
exempt posts from political restrictions.  This function is currently 
undertaken by the Standards Committee but under the Localism Act is 
specifically delegated to the Head of Paid Service. 

 
12. Breach of the Code of Conduct 

 

Page 32



 

 

12.1 As the Act puts the council under a legal obligation to have a Code of 
Conduct, it follows that the council must put in place arrangements to 
deal with complaints about alleged breaches of its Code. 
 

12.2 Section 34 of the Act makes it a criminal offence without reasonable 
excuse for a Member or co-optee to fail to comply with the 
requirements on disclosure of pecuniary interests.  Complaints under 
this provision should be made to and handled by the Police. 
 

12.3 A person found guilty is liable to a conviction in the Magistrates Court 
and a fine not exceeding level 5 (currently £5000).  The Magistrates 
Court are also given the power to disqualify a person from office for a 
period not exceeding 5 years. 
 

12.4 The Act does not provide for sanctions for breach of the Code to be 
imposed by the council, therefore any findings of a breach would need 
to be addressed by way of powers that the council has available to it 
already.  For example, public censure, or removal from a committee, 
apology and/or training. 

 
13 Independent Person 

 
13.1 The Act requires each local authority to appoint at least one 

independent person, whose views should be sought and taken into 
account before the Council takes a decision in relation an allegation 
that it has decided to investigate.  The views of the independent 
person(s) may also be sought by the member or co-optee about whom 
the complaint has been made. 
 

13.2 The transitional regulations allow for the appointment of previous 
independent members of the council provided they are not members of 
the council on the 1st of July 2012. 
 

13.3 Members are recommended to appoint two independent persons. 
 

14 Standards Committee 
 
14.1 The Localism Act 2011 abolishes the requirement for the council to 

have a Standards Committee, although the council has the power to 
set up a Standards Committee under other legislation.  If the council 
were not to have a standards committee then it would need to put in 
place some other mechanism to operate and oversee the operation of 
this Code of Conduct for Members. 
 

14.2 Members are advised to appoint a Standards Committee and that the 
new Standards Committee should be politically balanced. This is a 
model being widely adopted by other Councils. 
  

14.3 The recommended composition of the Standards Committee is set out 
in the table below. Members are advised against creating a larger 
committee since it is more effective to conduct any hearings and similar 
matters with a smaller group. 
 

Page 33



 

 

 Labour Group Liberal 
Democratic 
Group 

Conservative 
Group 

Total Council 
seats 

40 17 6 

Percentage of 
seats of the 
Council 

63.49% 26.98% 9.52% 

Number of 
seats on 
Standards 
Committee 

3 1 1 

 
 

14.4 The Standards Committee can include non-councillors, however, those 
non-councillors would have the status of co-optees and would be 
unable to vote and because of this, it is recommended any future 
standards committee should be chaired by an elected Member. 
Notwithstanding the limitation on the role of a co-opted person it is 
recommended that such be appointed to offer an external view and 
scrutiny.  The ordinary rules on access to information and meetings 
would apply to work of the Committee. 
 

15 Standards for England 
 
15.1 The Localism Act has abolished Standards for England. 
 

16 Key implications 
 
16.1 A proposed Code of Conduct is set out in Appendix 1 of this report.  

This Code has been produced following detailed work by the 
Constitutional Working Group, a cross party working group with officer 
support.  The draft Code aims to preserve the best of the council’s 
existing Code, whilst taking on board the requirements and new 
priorities of the Localism Act 2012.  It should be noted that the Localism 
Act does not prescribe any of the provisions of the proposed new code 
of Conduct, save for those relating to the General Principles, 
dispensations, sensitive interests, and most of those relating to 
Members Interests.  The proposed new Code of Conduct goes 
considerably further (in terms of standards required of Brent members) 
than is required by law.   
 

16.2 Disclosure of pecuniary interest:  The Monitoring Officer will produce a 
new form and guidance for members.  It is proposed that the council 
agree that members leave a meeting when they have declared a 
pecuniary interest, and the draft Code provides for this.  It is also 
recommended that members be required to notify and keep up to date 
their interests on the Register, even though the Act requires only that 
interests be registered at the time of election and updated in the event 
that the member is required to make a declaration during the course of 
a meeting. 
 

Page 34



 

 

16.3 Dispensations:  it is proposed that, by reason of the likely time 
constraints involved, authority be delegated to the Monitoring Officer to 
deal with dispensation requests.  Where the Monitoring Officer is 
undecided on the best response, and time is not of the essence, the 
decision could be passed to Standards Committee for decision. 
 

16.4 Any alleged breach of the registration of interest’s rules should be 
reported to the police.  However a Committee may deal with alleged 
breach of other parts of the Code of Conduct.  The independent 
person(s) must be consulted before deciding on an allegation it has 
decided to investigate.  It is recommended that the Council delegate 
authority to the Monitoring Officer to carry out initial filtering of 
complaints. 
 

16.5 Independent Person:  it is recommended that the Council appoints 2 
Independent Persons, in order to provide some flexibility with regard to 
availability. 
 

16.6 Standards Committee:  it is recommended that the council sets up a 
new Standards Committee, to implement and/or oversee the 
implementation of the standards requirements of the Localism Act.  The 
recommended terms of reference attached as Appendix 2.  It is further 
recommended that the Monitoring Officer draw up draft procedures for 
that committee in consultation with the Constitutional Working Group 
and these be approved by Standards Committee. 
 

16.7 Sanctions:  the Act prescribes criminal prosecution in respect of breach 
by members of the provisions within the Code of Conduct relating to 
registration or declaration of pecuniary interests.  However, sanctions 
for breach of other sections of the Code of Conduct are a matter for the 
council itself to decide. Because of the lack of statutory force, the 
council’s options are now much more limited than was previously the 
case.  Effectively, options include only censure by Full Council, or a 
recommendation to Full Council that a member be removed from 
membership of a particular council body – such as a committee.  In 
addition requirement can be made either for an apology from a member 
or for training. 

 
17 Financial 

 
17.1 There is currently no budget specifically allocated to administration of 

the standards regime at the council.  The workload arising from 
standards is relatively low, and generally easily absorbed within the 
workload of the Legal and Procurement Department.  However, the 
demand on resources inevitably increases on occasions when several 
investigations are in progress at the same time. 
 

18 Legal 
 
18.1 The implications of the Localism Act 2011 are set out within the body of 

the report.  It will no longer be a legal requirement that the council has 
a Standards Committee but members are advised to continue to do so. 
Although the council is required to have a Code of Conduct for its 

Page 35



 

 

members, the form of the Code of Conduct is not prescribed by the Act 
and subject to reflecting the seven principles set out in the Act the 
format of the Code is at the Council’s discretion.  

 
19. Staffing Implications 
   

None   
   
20. Diversity Implications 

 
None 

 
Background Information:  
Localism Act 2011 
Brent Council’s Constitution 
Localism Act 2011 (Commencement No. 6 and Transitional, Savings and 
Transitory Provisions) Order 2012 

 
Contact officer: 
Kathy Robinson 
Tel: 020 8937 1368 
Email: kathy.robinson@brent.gov.uk 

 
  
 
 Fiona Ledden 
 Director of Legal and Procurement 

Page 36



APPENDIX 1 

BRENT COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 

PART 1 
 

Introduction and interpretation 
 
1. (1) This code applies to you as a member of Brent Council. 
 (2) It is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code 

(3) In this Code –  
  
 “meeting” means any meeting of –  
 

(a) Full council; 
(b) The Executive; 
(c) Any of the council’s or its Executive’s committees, sub-committees, joint 

committees or joint sub-committees; 
  
 “member” includes a co-opted member and an appointed member. 
 

Scope 
 
2. (1) Subject to sub-sections (2) and (5), you must comply with this Code whenever you- 

 
(a) conduct the business of the council (which, in this Code, includes the 
business of the office to which you are elected or appointed); or  
(b) act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a representative of 
the council, 

 and references to your official capacity are construed accordingly. 
 

  (2) Subject to sub-sections (3) and (4), this Code does not have effect in relation to 
your conduct other than where it is in your official capacity. 

 
(3)  In addition to having effect in relation to conduct in your official capacity, section 5 

also has effect at any other time, where that conduct constitutes a criminal offence 
for which you have been convicted. 

 
(4)  Conduct to which this Code applies (whether that is conduct in your official 

capacity or conduct mentioned in sub-section (3)) includes a criminal offence for 
which you are convicted (including an offence you committed before the date you 
took office, but for which you are convicted after that date). 

 
(5)  Where you act as a representative of the council –  
 

(a) on another relevant authority, you must, when acting for that other authority, 
comply with that other authority’s Code of Conduct, or 

(b) on any other body, you must, when acting for that other body, comply with 
Brent Council’s Code of Conduct, except and insofar as it conflicts with any 
other lawful obligations to which that other body may be subject. 

PART 2 
 
High standards of conduct 
 
3. You must maintain a high standard of conduct, and comply with the following general 

conduct principles: 
 

Page 37



APPENDIX 1 

The General Principles 
 
Selflessness – you should serve only the public interest and should never improperly confer 
an advantage or disadvantage on any person. 
 
Integrity – you should not place yourself in situations where your integrity may be 
questioned, should not behave improperly and should on all occasions avoid the 
appearance of such behaviour. 
 
Objectivity – you should make decisions on merit, including when making appointments, 
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits. 
 
Accountability – you should be accountable to the public for your actions and the manner in 
which you carry out your responsibilities, and should co-operate fully and honestly with any 
scrutiny appropriate to your particular office. 
 
Openness – you should be as open as possible about your actions and those of your 
authority, and should be prepared to give reasons for those actions. 
 
Honesty – you should be truthful in your council work and avoid creating situations where 
your honesty may be called into question. 
 
Leadership – you should promote and support these principles by leadership, and by 
example, and should act in a way that secures or preserves public confidence. 
 
General Obligations 
 
4. (1) You must treat others with respect. 

 
(2) You must not – 

 
(a) do anything which may cause the council to breach any of the duties under 
the Equality Act 2010; 
(b) bully any person; 
(c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be –  

(i) a complainant, 
(ii) a witness, or 
(iii) involved in the administration of any investigation or proceedings, 
 

in relation to an allegation that a member (including yourself) has failed to comply 
with the council’s Code of Conduct; or 
 
 (d) do anything which comprises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of 
those who work for, or on behalf of, the council. 

 
5. You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 

bringing your office or the council into disrepute. 
 

6.  You must not – 
 

(a) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or information 
acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a 
confidential nature, except where – 
 

Page 38



APPENDIX 1 

(i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 
(ii) you are required by law to do so; 
(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 
professional advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the 
information to any other person; or 
(iv) the disclosure is –  

(aa) reasonable in all the circumstances, and 
(bb) in the public interest, and 
(cc) made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable 

requirements of the council; or 
(b)  prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that person 

is entitled by law. 
 
7. You – 
 

(a) must not use or attempt to use your position as a member improperly to confer on 
or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or disadvantage, and  

(b) must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the council 
– 
(i) act in accordance with the council’s reasonable requirements; and 
(ii) ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes 

(including party political purposes). 
 

8. (1) When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any relevant 
advice provided to you by –  

 
(a) The council’s chief finance officer; or 
(b) The council’s Monitoring Officer ,  

 
 where that officer is acting pursuant to his or her statutory duties. 
 

(2)  You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory 
requirements and any reasonable additional requirements imposed by the 
council. 

 
PART 3 

 
Interests 

 
Pecuniary interests and registration 

 
9. (1)  For the purposes of this Code, a pecuniary interest is a “disclosable pecuniary 

interest” in relation to a person (“M”) if it is of a description specified in 
regulations made by the Secretary of State and either – 
(a) It is an interest of M’s, or  
(b) It is an interest of – 

(i)  M’s spouse or civil partner, 
(ii)  A person with whom M is living as husband and wife, or 
(iii) A person with whom M is living as if they were civil partners, and M is 

aware that that other person has the interest. 
(2)  Subject to section 11, you must, within 28 days of your election or appointment 

to office, notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which you have at the date when the notification is given. 

(3)   Subject to section 11, you must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new 

Page 39



APPENDIX 1 

disclosable pecuniary interest or change to any pecuniary interest registered 
under sub section (2), notify the Monitoring Officer of that change or new 
interest. 

(4)  The Monitoring Officer will maintain the council’s register of interests, and enter 
onto that register all interests notified to him/her 

Disclosure of pecuniary interests 
 

10. (1) Sub sections (2) to (4) apply to you if you – 
(a) are present at a meeting of the council or of any committee, sub-committee, 

joint committee  or joint sub-committee, Executive or Executive sub-
committee meeting, 

(b) have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be considered, or 
being considered, at the meeting, and 

(c) are aware that the condition in paragraph (b) is met. 
 

(2)  If the interest is not entered in the council’s register, you must disclose the 
interest to the meeting, but this is subject to section 11. 

 
(3) If the interest is not entered in the council’s register and is not the subject of a 

pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest before 
the end of 28 days beginning with the date of the disclosure. 

 
(4) If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest you may not – 

 
(a) participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the matter at the 

meeting, or  
(b) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting,  
(c) remain in the meeting during the duration of any discussion of the matter but 

this is subject to section 12. 
 

(5) Sub sections (6) and (7) apply if – 
 
(a)  a function of the Council may be discharged by a member acting alone, 
(b)  you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be dealt with, or 

being dealt with, by you in the course of discharging that function, and 
(c)  you are aware that the condition in sub section  (b) is met. 
 

(6) If the interest is not entered in the Council’s register and is not the subject of a 
 pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest before 
 the end of 28 days beginning with the date when you become aware that the 
 condition in sub section (5) (b) is met in relation to the matter. 

 
(7) You must not take any steps, or any further steps, in relation to the matter 

 (except for the purpose of enabling the matter to be dealt with otherwise than by 
 you). 

 
(8) Where you give a notification for the purposes of sub sections (3) and (6), the 

 Monitoring Officer will enter the interest notified in the Council’s register (whether 
 or not it is a disclosable pecuniary interest). 

 
(9) You will be excluded from a meeting while any discussion or vote takes place in 

 which, as a result of the operation of sub section (4), you may not participate. 
 
(10) for the purpose of this section, an interest is “subject to a pending notification” if 

–  

Page 40



APPENDIX 1 

(a) under this section or section 11, the interest has been notified to the 
Monitoring Officer, but 

(b)  that interest has not yet been entered in the council’s register in 
consequence of that notification. 

Sensitive interests 
 
11. (1) Sub sections (2) and (3) apply where –  

(a) you have an interest (whether or not a disclosable pecuniary interest), and  
(b) the nature of the interest is such that both you, and the Monitoring Officer, 

consider that disclosure of the details of the interest could lead to you, or a 
person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation. 
 

(2)  If the interest is entered in the council’s register, copies of the registers that are 
made available for inspection, and any published version of the register, must 
not include details of the interest (but may state that you have an interest the 
details of which are withheld under this subsection). 

 
(3)  If section 10(2) applies in relation to the interest, that provision is to be read as 

requiring you to disclose not the interest but merely the fact that you have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter concerned. 

 
Dispensations 
 
12. (1)  The Monitoring Officer may, on written request made by you, grant a 

dispensation relieving you from either or all of the restrictions in section 10(4) in 
cases described in the dispensation. 

 
(2)   The Monitoring Officer may grant you a dispensation under this section only if, 

after having had regard to all relevant circumstances, s/he –  
 

(a)  considers that without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited by 
section 10(4) from participating in any particular business would be so great 
a proportion of the body transacting the business as to impede the 
transaction of the business, 

(b)  considers that without the dispensation the representation of different 
political groups on the body transacting any particular business would be so 
upset as to alter the likely outcome of any vote relating to the business, 

(c) considers that granting the dispensation is in the interest of persons living in 
the authority’s area, 

(d) considers that granting the dispensation each member of the Executive 
would be prohibited by section 10(4) from participating in any particular 
business to be transacted by the Executive, or 

(e) considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 
 

(3)  A dispensation under this section must specify the period for which it has effect, 
and the period specified may not exceed four years. 

 
(4)  Section 10(4) does not apply in relation to anything done for the purpose of 

deciding whether to grant a dispensation under this section.  
PART 4 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
Related documents 

Page 41



APPENDIX 1 

 
13. The council has adopted other codes and protocols which do not form part of this 

Code but which deal with specific activities you may be required or wish to carry out 
in the course of your duties as a councillor.  You are required to comply with these 
and any breach may be regarded as a breach of this Code.  The following codes and 
protocols are currently in effect: 

 
(1) Planning Code of Practice 
(2) Licensing Code of Practice 
(3) Local Authority Code of Publicity  
(4) Use of Information Technology:  Guidance on the Brent’s Local Code of 

Conduct for members 
(5) Convention on Working Relations 

 
Guidance 
 
14. If you need further advice or guidance on interpretation of this Code, please contact: 
 
Fiona Ledden, Director of Legal and Procurement (Monitoring Officer); Ext:  1292 or 
Kathy Robinson, Senior Lawyer, Ext:  1368 
 

Page 42



APPENDIX 2 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Membership 
 
• The committee is comprised of 6 members. 
• 5 members are elected councillors and one member who is a non voting co opted 

member 
• The Leader shall not be a member of the committee. 
• No more than 1 member of the Executive may be a member of the committee. 

 
Terms of reference 
 
The committee is responsible for the following functions:- 
 
1. To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members including any co-

opted members. 
 
2. To assist members and co-opted members to observe the Brent Members’ Code of 

Conduct, the Planning Code of Practice, the Licensing Code of Practice and any 
other code of conduct or practice which is adopted (“the Codes”). 

 
3. To monitor the operation, effectiveness of and compliance with the Codes and to 

recommend adoption or revisions of the Codes to the Council. 
 
4. To advise members and co-opted members on matters relating to the Codes and on 

any other matters related to their conduct and treatment of their pecuniary interests. 
 

5. To provide or arrange training for members and co-opted members on matters 
relating to the Codes. 

 
6.  To receive reports from the Monitoring Officer. 
 
7. To receive allegations referred to it by the Monitoring Officer that a member 

(including a co-opted member) failed, or may have failed, to comply with the 
Council’s Code of Conduct.  
 

8. To decide whether to ask the Monitoring Officer to investigate allegations or a breach 
of the Code, or to take no further action. 
 

9. To hold hearings into allegations of misconduct against Councillors once they have 
been investigated, to consider the views of the Independent Person,  and to decide 
whether in the circumstances 
 
a) There was a breach of the Code of Conduct and if so what action should be 

taken 
b) There was a breach of the Code of Conduct but that in the circumstances no 

further action should be taken; or 
c) That there was no breach of the Code of Conduct.  
 

10. To carry out all other functions relating to complaints about members’ conduct set out 
in the Localism Act 2011 and the Code of Conduct 

 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 

   

 
Helpful Reminders for Members 
 

• Is your register of interests up to date?  
• Have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary interests?  
• Have you checked the register to ensure that they have been transcribed correctly?  

 
When should you declare an interest at a meeting? 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF 
 
 

• What matters are being discussed at the meeting? (including Council, 
Executive, Committees, Subs, Joint Committees and Joint Subs);   

Is the business to be transacted at the meeting  
• related to; or  
• or likely to affect your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests?  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests shall include your interest or interests of : 

• your spouse or civil partner 
• a person you are living with as husband/ wife 
• a person you are living with as if you were civil partners 

and you are aware that this other person has the interest 
 

•

       What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? – see overleaf  

If the Interest is not entered in the register and is not 
the subject of a pending notification you must within 
28 days notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for 
inclusion in the register  

Unless you have received dispensation upon 
previous application from theMonitoring  Officer , 
you must: 
- Not participate or participate further in any 

discussion of the matter at a meeting;  
- Not participate in any vote or further vote taken 

at the meeting; and 
- leave the room while the item is being 

considered/voted upon 

If the interest is not already in the 
register you must (unless the interest has 
been agreed by the Monitoring  Officer to 
be sensitive) disclose the existence and 

nature of the interest to the meeting 

    

Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest 

Page 45



APPENDIX 3 

   

 
Pecuniary Interests  
 
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

 
Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
London Borough of Brent) made or provided within the relevant period in 
respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member, or towards your election expenses.   
 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within 
the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) 
Act 1992 
 

Contracts Any contract which you have made between you (or a body in which you 
have a beneficial interest) and the London Borough of Brent - 
(a)  under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 
(b)  which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the London 
Borough of Brent. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the London Borough of Brent for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) -  
(a)  the landlord is the London Borough of Brent; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where –  
 
(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the relevant authority; and 
(b)  either - 
(i)  the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
(ii)  if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 
 

Please note where there is any reference to the word “you/your” this also includes those interests 
of your spouse or civil partner, a person you are living with as husband/wife, and a person you 
are living with as if you were civil partners, and you are aware that this other person has the 
interest.  

 

Page 46



P
age 47



P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61



P
age 62



P
age 63



P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



P
age 68



P
age 69



P
age 70



P
age 71



P
age 72



P
age 73



P
age 74



P
age 75



P
age 76



P
age 77



P
age 78



P
age 79



P
age 80



P
age 81



P
age 82



P
age 83



P
age 84



P
age 85



P
age 86


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of previous meetings
	Minutes of Previous Meeting
	CommitteeStructure
	Outsidebodiesappts

	5 Report from the Leader or members of the Executive
	9 By election results
	10 New standards regime under Localism Act
	Stnds - App 1
	Stnds - App 2
	Stnds - App 3
	Stnds -App 4


